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PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING 

Accounting is a highly technical and vast field of study…And, this is a one-day 

course…Therefore, it is impossible to address all that’s involved in accounting.  However, you 

should gain a basic understanding of major accounting assumptions and its application to 

produce reliable financial statements 

Accounting is the cornerstone for analyzing financial statements and tax returns.  To improve 

analytical skills, it starts with have a good working knowledge of accounting.  Once you 

understand how financial statements are constructed, it makes it easier for you to analyze and 

understand the results. 

After all, would you consider taking your car in for repairs to an auto mechanic who tells you, “I 

would love to fix your car, but I don’t know how the engine works….” How can you analyze 

financial statements and tax returns if you do not know how they are constructed? 

ACCOUNTING DEFINED 

So, what is Accounting?  It is the process of identifying, measuring, and communicating 

economic information to permit informed judgments and decisions by the users of the 

information.  (AAA) 

Accounting is the “language” employed to communicate financial information. 

Accounting is primarily concerned with the design of the system of records, the preparation of 

reports based on the recorded data, and the interpretation of the reports. 

FUNCTIONS PERFORMED BY ACCOUNTANTS 

▪ Observe, identify and measure economic events in financial terms

• Record, classify, and summarize measurements of those economic events for conciseness

(using a company’s chart of accounts which is a list of all accounts set up to handle a

company’s accounting transactions. The accounts are numbered in order, usually starting

with 1000 (assets) and continuing through to 9000 (miscellaneous gains and losses)

▪ Report on financial events by preparing financial statements and special reports

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP): 

The rules financial accountants must follow when handling accounting transactions and 

preparing financial statements. Financial accountants can’t just throw numbers on the income 

statement, balance sheet, or statement of cash flows; a level playing field must exist between 
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businesses so that the individuals reading the financial statements can compare one company to 

another. 

INFLUENTIAL ORGANIZATIONS 

The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) 

The AICPA is the world’s largest association representing the accounting profession, with nearly 

418,000 members in 143 countries.  AICPA members represent many areas of practice, including 

business and industry, public practice, government, education and education and consulting; 

membership is also available to accounting students and CPA candidates.   

The AICPA sets ethical standards for the profession and U.S auditing standards for audits of 

private companies, non-profit organizations, federal, state and local governments.  It develops 

and grades the Uniform CBA Examination. 

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 

Since 1973, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) has been the designated 

organization in the private sector for establishing standards of financial accounting that governs 

the preparation of financial reports by nongovernmental entities. Those standards are officially 

recognized as authoritative by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the American 

Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  

Such standards are important to the efficient functioning of the economy because decisions about 

the allocation of resources rely heavily on credible, concise, and understandable financial 

information. 

The mission of the FASB is to establish and improve standards of financial accounting and 

reporting that foster financial reporting by nongovernmental entities that provides decision-

useful information to investors and other users of financial reports. That mission is accomplished 

through a comprehensive and independent process that encourages broad participation, 

objectively considers all stakeholder views, and is subject to oversight by the Financial 

Accounting Foundation’s Board of Trustees. 

The FASB is part of a structure that is independent of all other business and professional 

organizations. That structure includes the Financial Accounting Foundation (Foundation), the 

FASB, the Financial Accounting Standards Advisory Council (FASAC), the Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board (GASB), and the Governmental Accounting Standards Advisory 

Council (GASAC). 
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Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the independent organization that 

establishes and improves standards of accounting and financial reporting for U.S. state and local 

governments. Established in 1984 by agreement of the Financial Accounting Foundation (FAF) 

and 10 national associations of state and local government officials, the GASB is recognized by 

governments, the accounting industry, and the capital markets as the official source of generally 

accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for state and local governments. 

Accounting and financial reporting standards designed for the government environment are 

essential because governments are fundamentally different from for profit businesses. 

Furthermore, the information needs of the users of government financial statements are 

different from the needs of the users of private company financial statements. The GASB 

members and staff understand the unique characteristics of governments and the environment 

in which they operate.  

The GASB is not a government entity; instead, it is an operating component of the FAF, which is 

a private sector not-for-profit entity. Funding for the GASB comes in part from sales of its own 

publications and in part from state and local governments and the municipal bond community. Its 

standards are not federal laws or regulations and the organization does not have enforcement 

authority. Compliance with GASB’s standards, however, is enforced through the laws of some 

individual states and through the audit process, when auditors render opinions on the fairness of 

financial statement presentations in conformity with GAAP. 

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) 

The mission of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission is to protect investors, maintain 

fair, orderly, and efficient markets, and facilitate capital formation. 

The SEC oversees the key participants in the securities world, including securities exchanges, 

securities brokers and dealers, investment advisors, and mutual funds. Here the SEC is concerned 

primarily with promoting the disclosure of important market-related information, maintaining 

fair dealing, and protecting against fraud. 

Crucial to the SEC's effectiveness in each of these areas is its enforcement authority. Each year 

the SEC brings hundreds of civil enforcement actions against individuals and companies for 

violation of the securities laws. Typical infractions include insider trading, accounting fraud, and 

providing false or misleading information about securities and the companies that issue them.  

Though it is the primary overseer and regulator of the U.S. securities markets, the SEC works 

closely with many other institutions, including Congress, other federal departments and agencies, 

the self-regulatory organizations (e.g. the stock exchanges), state securities regulators, and 

various private sector organizations. In particular, the Chairman of the SEC, together with the 

Chairman of the Federal Reserve, the Secretary of the Treasury, and the Chairman of the 

Commodity Futures Trading Commission, serves as a member of the President's Working Group 

on Financial Markets.  
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ACCOUNTING ASSUMPTIONS 

Accounting principles and assumptions are the essential guidelines under which businesses 

prepare their financial statements. These principles guide the methods and decisions for a 

business over a short and long term. For both internal and external reporting purposes, it is 

important to understand the concepts presented below because they serve as a guideline to the 

analysis of financial reporting issues. 

Economic Entity Assumption 

Under the economic entity assumption, an economic activity can be identified to a separate entity 

accountable for that activity. In other words, this assumption states that businesses must keep 

their transactions separate from their owners’, business units’ or other businesses’ transactions. 

For example, the business activities of the neighborhood coffee house are to be kept separate 

from the financial activities of its owners or managers.  The financial statements for the coffee 

house will only reflect the revenue and expenses for the coffee house. Thus, it is possible to 

compare the financial statements of this coffeehouse with its competitors’ reports, since these 

statements should be reported separately under the economic entity assumption. Important to 

note, a separate entity does not necessarily mean a legal entity. For example, financial statements 

for a parent company and its subsidiaries (i.e. separate legal entities) can be presented together 

(i.e. consolidated financial statements). 

Revenue Recognition Principle 

Under this principle revenue is to be recorded when it is realized (or realizable), and when it is 

earned and not when it is received. Revenue is realized when goods or services are exchanged, is 

realizable when assets received can be converted to cash and is earned when all necessary 

requirements are met entitling the company to the benefits represented by the revenue (e.g. 

services performed). 

For example, suppose a neighborhood coffee house orders 100 coffee mugs from a coffee 

wholesaler in June. The coffee house takes delivery of the new mugs in July and pays for the 

order in August. The wholesaler does not recognize the revenue from this sale in June, when the 

order was placed, or in August, when the cash was received.  For recording purposes, the 

revenue is recognized by the wholesaler in July, when the coffee mugs were delivered to the 

coffeehouse.  

This principle is used for the recognition of revenue for both goods and services. For example, if 

an attorney is hired with an agreed upon retainer fee of $2,500 in May, and the services are not 

performed until July, the attorney does not recognize the revenue until July.  The attorney must 

earn the income before it can be recorded as such, even though he/she received cash for the 

service at an earlier date. 
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Historical Cost Principle 

The historical cost principle deals with the valuation of both assets and liabilities.  The value at 

the time of acquisition is used to value most assets and liabilities.  For example, say the coffee 

wholesaler purchased an office building in 1990 for $1.2 million.  Over time this asset has most 

likely appreciated in value.  However, in accordance with the cost principle, the original 

(historical) price of the building is what is recorded as the cost of the building in the books of the 

business. 

Note that another basis for valuing elements of financial statements is coming into play.  The 

new basis is fair value.  With the convergence of global standards, fair value is used more in the 

United States to value elements of financial statements. 

Fair Value Principle 

Fair value accounting is a financial reporting approach in which companies are required or 

permitted to measure and report on an ongoing basis certain assets and liabilities (generally 

financial instruments) at estimates of the prices they would receive if they were to sell the assets 

or would pay if they were to be relieved of the liabilities.  

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued an important and 

controversial new standard, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, which 

provides significantly more comprehensive guidance to assist companies in estimating fair 

values 

Some parties (generally financial institutions) have criticized fair value accounting, including 

FAS 157’s measurement guidance. Those criticisms have included:  

◦ Reported losses are misleading because they are temporary and will reverse as

markets return to normal

◦ Fair values are difficult to estimate and thus are unreliable

◦ Reported losses have adversely affected market prices yielding further losses and

increasing the overall risk of the financial system.

Matching Principle 

This principle mandates that the expenses of a business need to line up with its revenue.  The 

expense or cost of doing business is recorded in the same period as the revenue that has been 

generated as the result of incurring that cost.  In the case of the coffee wholesaler, when the 100 

coffee mugs were delivered in July they changed from being a part of inventory (asset) to a cost 

of goods sold entry (expense) in the month that the revenue from the sale was recognized.  At 

this point, the difference between the revenue and expense is determined as the gross profit from 

the sale.   
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Full Disclosure Principle 

This principle states that all past, present and future information that may have had an impact on 

the financial performance of the company needs to be fully disclosed.  The historical 

performance of a company is readily available but examining the numbers does not always 

provide the entire financial picture of a company. Sometimes there are alternative situations that 

need to be reported. Pending or current lawsuits are one example of a transaction that could 

severely impact a company’s bottom line.  In addition, incomplete financial transactions or any 

other conditions that could impact the company’s performance must also be disclosed. Most of 

these transactions are disclosed in the footnotes to the financial statements. 

Money Measurement 

Economic activity is initially recorded and reported in terms of a common unit of 

measure (US dollar). 

Continuity or Going Concern 

The entity is assumed to have an indefinite life unless strong evidence exits to the 

contrary. 

Periodicity 

An entity’s life can be subdivided into time periods for purposes of reporting its 

economic activities. 

THE ACCOUNTING EQUATION 

Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity 

After each economic event is recorded into the records of an economic entity, the Accounting 

Equation must always balance after the transaction is documented.  This will ensure that the 

Balance Sheet Assets will equal the Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity and the results of the 

Income Statement is properly reflected in Retained Earnings. 

Bottom Line: “The equation must always be in balance”. 
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RULES OF DEBITS AND CREDITS 

Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders' Equity 

Asset Accounts Liability Accounts 

Stockholders' Equity 

Accounts 

Debit * Credit Debit Credit* Debit Credit* 

Debit for 

Increase 

Credit for 

Decrease 

Debit for 

Decrease 

Credit for 

Increase 

Debit for 

Decrease 

Credit for 

Increase 

Cost and Expense Accounts Revenue Accounts 

Debit * Credit Debit Credit* 

Debit for 

Increase 

Credit for 

Decrease 

Debit for 

Decrease 

Credit for 

Increase 

DEBITS CREDITS 

Increase assets Decrease assets 

Decrease liabilities Increase liabilities 

Decrease stockholders' equity Increase stockholders' equity 

Decrease revenues Increase revenues 

Increase expenses Decrease expenses 

Increase dividends Decrease dividends 

*Normal balance
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FASB Accounting Standards Codification Quick Reference Guide 

The FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC or the "Codification") organizes nongovernmental U.S. GAAP 
using a topic-based model consisting of 90 individual Topics. Each Topic contains at least one Subtopic. Subtopics 
contain Sections, which include the actual accounting guidance. Sections are based on the nature of the content (e.g., 
scope, recognition, measurement, etc.) and are standardized throughout the Codification. 

Topics, Subtopics, and Sections 

Each Section includes numbered Paragraphs. Paragraph numbers start with the Section number followed by the 
unique paragraph number. For example, in Section 55 the first paragraph is numbered 55-1. Paragraph numbers in the 
Codification will not change going forward. New paragraphs may result in the FASB using a letter extension in order to 
keep the numbering constant. For example, a new paragraph inserted between paragraphs 55-3 and 55-4 would be 
numbered 55-3A. 

Paragraphs 

ASC XXX-YY-ZZ-PP 
Citation Format 

XXX   = Topic 
 YY  = Subtopic 
 ZZ  = Section 
 PP  = Paragraph 

ASC 210 (Topic 210, "Balance Sheet") 
Citation Examples 

ASC 210-20 (Subtopic 20, "Offsetting," of Topic 210) 
ASC 210-20-60 (Section 60, "Relationships," of Subtopic 210-20) 
ASC 210-20-60-5 (Paragraph 60-5 of Section 210-20-60) 

New authoritative U.S. GAAP will be communicated via a new FASB document called an "Accounting Standards 
Update" (or "ASU" for short). As the FASB issues new guidance, both the current paragraphs and the new guidance 
will be featured in the Codification until the new guidance is effective for all entities. During this transition, the 
Codification will mark the new guidance as "Pending Text" and will link to the related transition guidance. When the 
new guidance is effective for all entities, the previous guidance will be removed and the new guidance will remain.  

New Authoritative Guidance 

The Codification is available in Comperio (www.pwccomperio.com), PwC's global library of accounting literature. 
Comperio includes several new features and a demo to assist PwC staff and Comperio subscribers in navigating the 
Codification. PwC clients and friends can obtain a free 30-day trial at www.pwc.com/comperio. 

PwC Resources 

PwC DataLine 2009 -12 provides an overview of the Codification. PwC clients and friends can access further 
information under the "Codification" hot topic on the CFOdirect Network (www.cfodirect.pwc.com). PwC staff can 
obtain additional information in the AASD database.

Additional Information 

pwc 8
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ASC Topic List

100   General Principles 
105  Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

200   Presentation 
205 Presentation of Financial Statements  
210 Balance Sheet  
215 Statement of Shareholder Equity  
220 Comprehensive Income  
225 Income Statement
230 Statement of Cash Flows  
235 Notes to Financial Statements  
250 Accounting Changes and Error Corrections  
255 Changing Prices  
260 Earnings Per Share  
270 Interim Reporting  
272 Limited Liability Entities  
274 Personal Financial Statements  
275 Risks and Uncertainties  
280 Segment Reporting

300  Assets  
305 Cash and Cash Equivalents  
310 Receivables
320 Investments—Debt and Equity Securities  
323 Investments—Equity Method and  

Joint Ventures  
325 Investments—Other
330 Inventory
340 Other Assets and Deferred Costs  
350 Intangibles—Goodwill and Other  
360 Property, Plant, and Equipment 

400   Liabilities  
405 Liabilities

410 Asset Retirement and  
Environmental Obligations  

420 Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations  
430 Deferred Revenue  
440 Commitments
450 Contingencies
460 Guarantees
470 Debt
480 Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity 

500   Equity  
505 Equity

600   Revenue  
605 Revenue Recognition

700   Expenses  
705 Cost of Sales and Services  
710 Compensation—General
712 Compensation—Nonretirement

Postemployment Benefits  
715 Compensation—Retirement Benefits  
718 Compensation—Stock Compensation
720 Other Expenses  
730 Research and Development  
740 Income Taxes

800   Broad Transactions  
805 Business Combinations  
808 Collaborative Arrangements  
810 Consolidation
815 Derivatives and Hedging  
820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures  
825 Financial Instruments  
830 Foreign Currency Matters  

835 Interest
840 Leases
845 Nonmonetary Transactions  
850 Related Party Disclosures  
852 Reorganizations
855 Subsequent Events  
860 Transfers and Servicing  

900   Industry  
905 Agriculture
908 Airlines
910 Contractors—Construction
912 Contractors—Federal Government  
915 Development Stage Entities  
920 Entertainment—Broadcasters
922 Entertainment—Cable Television  
924 Entertainment—Casinos
926 Entertainment—Films
928 Entertainment—Music
930 Extractive Activities—Mining  
932 Extractive Activities—Oil and Gas  
940 Financial Services—Broker and Dealers  
942 Financial Services—Depository and Lending  
944 Financial Services—Insurance  
946 Financial Services—Investment Companies  
948 Financial Services—Mortgage Banking  
950 Financial Services—Title Plant  
952 Franchisors
954 Health Care Entities  
958 Not-for-Profit Entities  
960 Plan Accounting—Defined Benefit  

Pension Plans  
962 Plan Accounting—Defined Contribution 

Pension Plans  

965 Plan Accounting—Health and Welfare  
Benefit Plans  

970 Real Estate—General  
972 Real Estate—Common Interest  

Realty Associations  
974 Real Estate—Real Estate Investment Trusts  
976 Real Estate—Retail Land  
978 Real Estate—Time-Sharing Activities  
980 Regulated Operations  
985 Software
995 U.S. Steamship Entities 

ASC Section List 

05 Overview and Background  
10 Objectives
15 Scope and Scope Exceptions  
20 Glossary
25 Recognition
30 Initial Measurement  
35 Subsequent Measurement
40 Derecognition
45 Other Presentation Matters  
50 Disclosure
55 Implementation Guidance and Illustrations  
60 Relationships
65 Transition and Open Effective Date Information  
70 Grandfathered Guidance
75 XBRL Definitions
S99 SEC Materials

Note: In addition to Section S99, an "S" preceding any 
Section number denotes SEC content. Example:  
260-10-S55

Selected Accounting Standards and Where They Now Reside* 

Accounting Standard General FASB Codification Topic Accounting Standard General FASB Codification Topic Accounting Standard General FASB Codification Topic Accounting Standard General FASB Codification Topic 

FAS 5 ASC 450 Contingencies FAS 115 ASC 320 Investments—Debt and Equity 

Securities 

FAS 141(R) ASC 805 Business Combinations FAS 165 ASC 855 Subsequent Events 

FAS 13 ASC 840 Leases FAS 123(R) ASC 718 Compensation—Stock Compensation FAS 142 ASC 350 Intangibles—Goodwill and Other FAS 168 ASC 105 Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles 

FAS 52 ASC 830 Foreign Currency Matters FAS 128 ASC 260 Earnings Per Share FAS 143 ASC 410 Asset Retirement and Environmental 

Obligations 

ARB 51 / FIN 

46(R) / FAS 160 / 

FAS 167*** 

ASC 810 Consolidation 

FAS 57 ASC 850 Related Party Disclosures FAS 130 ASC 220 Comprehensive Income FAS 144 ASC 360 Property, Plant, and Equipment APB 18 ASC 323 Investments—Equity Method and Joint 

Ventures 

FAS 87; 88, and 

106 

ASC 715 Compensation—Retirement Benefits FAS 131 ASC 280 Segment Reporting FAS 146 ASC 420 Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations APB 28 ASC 270 Interim Reporting 

FAS 95 ASC 230 Statement of Cash Flows FAS 133 ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging FAS 150 ASC 480 Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity APB 29 ASC 845 Non Monetary Transfers 

FAS 109 / FIN 48 ASC 740 Income Taxes FAS 140 / FAS 

166** 

ASC 860 Transfers and Servicing FAS 157 ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and 

Disclosures 

FIN 45 ASC 460 Guarantees 

* Use the Cross-Reference Tool in Comperio for specific details on where the prior standards now reside within the Codification. 

** FAS 166 has not yet been Codified. It is anticipated that this standard will primarily be incorporated into ASC 860 Transfers and Servicing. 

*** FAS 167 has not yet been Codified. It is anticipated that this standard will be primarily incorporated into ASC 810 Consolidation. 

© 2009 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. “PricewaterhouseCoopers” refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, or, as the context requires, the PricewaterhouseCoopers global network or other member firms of the network, 
each of which is a separate and independent legal entity. 9



FASB Accounting Standards Codification Quick Reference Guide
Financial Instruments Supplement*

* This is a supplement to PwC's primary Codification Quick Reference Guide, which is available on the CFOdirect Network (www.cfodirect.pwc.com), in Comperio, and the firm's internal AASD database.
** This table highlights the primary location of prior standards within the Codification. Use the Cross-Reference Tool in Comperio for specific details on where the prior standards now reside within the Codification.



Presentation and Financial Statement Accounts—ASC Topic/Subtopic List
200 Presentation

260 Earnings Per Share
260-10 Overall

300 Assets

305 Cash and Cash Equivalents
305-10 Overall
942-305 Financial Services—Depositary and Lending
946-305 Financial Services—Investment Companies

310 Receivables
310-10 Overall
310-20 Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs
310-30 Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with

Deteriorated Credit Quality
310-40 Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors
940-310 Financial Services—Brokers and Dealers
942-310 Financial Services—Depository and Lending
944-310 Financial Services—Insurance
946-310 Financial Services—Investment Companies
948-310 Financial Services—Mortgage Banking

320 Investments—Debt and Equity Securities
940-320 Financial Services—Broker and Dealers
942-320 Financial Services—Depository and Lending
944-320 Financial Services—Insurance
946-320 Financial Services—Investment Companies

323 Investments—Equity Method and
Joint Ventures

323-10 Overall
323-30 Partnerships, Joint Ventures, and Limited

Liability Entities
323-740 Income Taxes
946-323 Financial Services—Investment Companies
970-323 Real Estate—General
974-323 Real Estate Investment Trusts

325 Investments—Other
325-10 Overall
325-20 Cost Method Investments
325-30 Investments in Insurance Contracts
325-40 Beneficial Interests in Securitized

Financial Assets
940-325 Financial Services—Broker and Dealers
942-325 Financial Services—Depository and Lending
944-325 Financial Services—Insurance

400 Liabilities

405 Liabilities
405-10 Overall
405-20 Extinguishment of Liabilities
405-30 Insurance-Related Assessments
940-405 Financial Services—Broker and Dealers
942-405 Financial Services—Depository and Lending
944-405 Financial Services—Insurance
946-405 Financial Services—Investment Companies

440 Commitments
440-10 Overall

450 Contingencies
450-10 Overall
450-20 Loss Contingencies
450-30 Gain Contingencies

460 Guarantees
460-10 Overall

470 Debt
470-10 Overall
470-20 Debt with Conversion and Other Options
470-30 Participating Mortgage Loans
470-40 Product Financing Arrangements
470-50 Modifications and Extinguishments
470-60 Troubled Debt Restructuring by Debtors
942-470 Financial Services—Depository and Lending
944-470 Financial Services—Insurance
970-470 Real Estate—General

480 Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity
480-10 Overall

500 Equity

505 Equity
505-10 Overall
505-20 Stock Dividends and Stock Splits
505-30 Treasury Stock
505-50 Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employees
505-60 Spinoffs and Reverse Spinoffs
942-505 Financial Services—Depository and Lending
944-505 Financial Services—Insurance
946-505 Financial Services—Investment Companies

Selected Accounting Standards and Where They Now Reside**
Loans Securities/Other Investments Distinguishing Liabilities vs. Equity Liabilities

Accounting Standard FASB Codification Accounting Standard FASB Codification Accounting Standard FASB Codification Accounting Standard FASB Codification
FAS 65 ASC 948-310 FAS 115/FAS 124 ASC 320 FAS 150 ASC 480 FAS 5 ASC 450
SAB 109 (Topic 5: DD) ASC 815-10-S99-1 FAS 155 ASC 815-15-25 ASR 268 ASC 480-10-S99-3A FAS 6 ASC 470-10

APB 18 ASC 323-10-35 FAS 133 ASC 815 FAS 78 ASC 470-10
FIN 45 ASC 460

EITF 04-5 ASC 810-25 and 55 EITF D-98 ASC 480-10-S30 and S55 FTB 79-3 ASC 470-10-45-2 and 50-3
EITF 02-14 ASC 323-10-55 FSP APB 14-1 ASC 470-20 ARB 43 ASC 440-10, 450-20,

470-10, 505-20

Classification

EITF 03-16 ASC 323-30-15 and 35 EITF 86-30 ASC 470-10-45-1 and 55-3
thru 6

FAS 91 ASC 310-20 FAS 91 ASC 310-20 APB 14 ASC 470-20 FAS 84 ASC 470-20
SOP 01-6 ASC 310-10, 835-30 EITF 96-15 ASC 320-10-35, 830-20-35 EITF 98-5 ASC 470-20 APB 26 ASC 470-50
SOP 03-3 ASC 310-30 FAS 157 ASC 820 EITF 00-27 ASC 470-20 AIN-APB 26 ASC 470-20-40-4 and

470-50-15-3 and 40-5
FAS 157 ASC 820 FAS 159 ASC 825-10-25 APB 21 ASC 835-30

Recognition

FAS 159 ASC 825-10-25
FAS 5 ASC 450 FSPFAS 115-1/124-1 ASC 320-10-35 FAS 15 ASC 470-60
FAS 114 ASC 310-40 FSPFAS 115-2/124-2 ASC 320-10-65 EITF 02-04 ASC 470-60-55
SAB 102 (Topic 6:L) ASC 310-10-S99-4 SOP 03-3 ASC 310-30 EITF 96-19 ASC 470-50-40/55
FAS 15 ASC 310-40 EITF 99-20 ASC 325-40-15, 35, and 55 EITF 06-6 ASC 470-50-40-12, 40-15

thru 16

Impairment/
Other Events

EITF 01-07 ASC 310-20-35-11 FAS 141R ASC 805 EITF 98-14 ASC 470-50-40, 45, and 55
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FASB Accounting Standards Codification Quick Reference Guide
Financial Instruments Supplement*

* This is a supplement to PwC's primary Codification Quick Reference Guide, which is available on the CFOdirect Network (www.cfodirect.pwc.com), in Comperio, and the firm's internal AASD database.
** This table highlights the primary location of prior standards within the Codification. Use the Cross-Reference Tool in Comperio for specific details on where the prior standards now reside within the Codification.



Broad Transactions—ASC Topic/Subtopic List
800 Broad Transactions

815 Derivatives and Hedging
815-10 Overall
815-15 Embedded Derivatives
815-20 Hedging—General
815-25 Fair Value Hedges
815-30 Cash Flow Hedges
815-35 Net Investment Hedges
815-40 Contracts in Entity's Own Equity
815-45 Weather Derivatives
944-815 Financial Services—Insurance

820 Fair Value Measurements
and Disclosures

820-10 Overall
820-820 Financial Services—Brokers and Dealers

825 Financial Instruments
825-10 Overall
825-20 Registration Payment Arrangements
942-825 Financial Services—Depository and Lending
944-825 Financial Services—Insurance

830 Foreign Currency Matters
830-10 Overall
830-20 Foreign Current Transactions
830-30 Translation of Financial Statements
830-230 Statement of Cash Flows
830-740 Income Taxes
946-830 Financial Services—Investment Companies

835 Interest

840 Leases
840-10 Overall
840-20 Operating Leases
840-30 Capital Leases
840-40 Sale and Leaseback Transactions
974-840 Real Estate—Real Estate Investment Trusts
978-840 Real Estate—Time-Sharing Activities

860 Transfers and Servicing
860-10 Overall
860-20 Sales of Financial Assets
860-30 Secured Borrowing and Collateral
860-40 Transfers to Qualifying Special

Purposes Entities
860-50 Servicing Assets and Liabilities

ASC Section List
05 Overview and Background
10 Objectives
15 Scope and Scope Exceptions
20 Glossary
25 Recognition
30 Initial Measurement
35 Subsequent Measurement
40 Derecognition
45 Other Presentation Matters
50 Disclosure
55 Implementation Guidance and Illustrations
60 Relationships
65 Transition and Open Effective Date Information
70 Grandfathered Guidance
75 XBRL Definitions
S99 SEC Materials

Note: In addition to Section S99, an "S" preceding any
Section number denotes SEC content.
Example: ASC 260-10-S55

Selected Accounting Standards and Where They Now Reside**
Derivatives Hedging Other Broad Transactions

Accounting Standard FASB Codification Accounting Standard FASB Codification Accounting Standard FASB Codification
Definition FAS 133, par. 6, 9 ASC 815-10-15 Eligibility/ DIG G2 ASC 815-20-55-111 Example 8 Transfers FAS 140/FAS 166*** ASC 860, ***Not yet codified

FSPEITF 00-19-2 ASC 825-20 Designation DIG G13 ASC 815-20-55-88 Example 4 FAS 156 ASC 860-50-35 and 860-50-50-5
Scope exceptions FAS 133, par. 10 ASC 815-10-15 FAS 133, par. 20c, 28c ASC 815-20-25-94 Consolidations FIN 46R/FAS 167*** ASC 810, ***Not yet codified

FAS 133, par. 11a ASC 815-10-15-74 FAS 133, par. 29 ASC 815-20-25-15 ARB 51 ASC 810-10
EITF 07-5 ASC 815-40-15 FAS 133, par. 32 ASC 815-30-40-1 thru 3 FAS 160 ASC 810-10-65-1
EITF 00-19 ASC 815-40 FAS 133, par. 40a ASC 815-20-25-61 EITF 96-16 ASC 810-10-25-1 thru 14
DIG A6
DIG A10

ASC 815-10-55
ASC 815-10-15

Hedge effectiveness
and ineffectiveness

FAS 133, par. 68
DIG G20

ASC 815-20-25-102 thru 117
ASC 815-20-25-126, 55-209,

EITF 04-5 ASC 810-20-25-1 thru 20, and
810-20-55-1 thru 16

DIG A12 ASC 815-10-55-99 thru 110 and 35-33 EITF 85-12 ASC 810-10-25-15
DIG C12 ASC 815-10-15-39 FAS 133, par. 120c ASC 815-25-55-53 Example 9 Leasing FAS 13 ASC 840

Embedded FAS 133, par. 12, 13, 61 ASC 815-15-25 FAS 138 FV Example ASC 815-25-55-72 Example 11 FAS 98 ASC 840-40
Derivatives DIG B16 ASC 815-15-25-42 thru 43, DIG G7 Method 1 ASC 815-30-35-16 EITF 97-10 ASC 840-40-55

and 815-15-55-13 DIG G7 Method 2 ASC 815-30-35-25 EITF 01-8 ASC 840-10-15/55
DIG B38 ASC 815-10-15-107 thru 109 DIG G7 Method 3 ASC 815-30-35-31 EITF 00-13 ASC 360-20-15/55
DIG B39 ASC 815-15-25-37 thru 39, and DIG H8 ASC 815-35-35 Foreign FAS 52 ASC 830

815-15-55-25 DIG E7 ASC 815-20-35 Currency EITF D-55 ASC 830-10-45-12 and 830-10-55-24
EITF D-109 ASC 815-10-S99-3 Matters

The Codification is available in Comperio (www.pwccomperio.com), PwC’s global library of accounting literature. Comperio includes several new features and a demo to assist
PwC staff and Comperio subscribers in navigating the Codification. PwC clients and friends can obtain a free 30-day trial at www.pwc.com/comperio. Questions about topics
contained in this document should be directed to your PwC engagement team or members of the Financial Instruments team in the National Professional Services Group.

PwC Resources
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT COMPONENTS 

▪ Opinion Letter

▪ Balance Sheet

▪ Income Statement

▪ Statement of Retained Earnings

▪ Statement of Cash Flows

▪ Financial Notes

Opinion Letter 

When an independent Certified Public Accountant completes an audit of a client's financial 

statement, an opinion is rendered based upon the client's compliance with generally accepted 

accounting (auditing) principles.  The likely opinions are Unqualified, Qualified, Disclaimer and 

Adverse.  These are explained in more detail in the following section. 

Types of Opinion Letters 

Unqualified Opinion 

In rendering an Unqualified Opinion, the auditor is saying that all financial information that was 

available, in order and met all auditing standards.  After closing the examination, the auditor did 

not have major concerns or serious unanswered questions.  For a company’s management team, 

this opinion is the equivalent of receiving a gold star. 

Unqualified Opinion with Explanatory Language Added 

In such a case, the audit is still Unqualified, but the auditor felt it was necessary to add certain 

explanatory language to their report.  Doing so is not regarded as a qualification.  The auditors 

could be pointing out some inconsistency in applying accounting principles or mentioning an 

uncertainty that could have a material impact on the company’s financial statements 

Qualified Opinion 

An auditor will write this type of letter to management when most of the company’s financial 

statements are in order and meet auditing standards, except for one or more accounts or 

transactions.  The accounts or transactions in question will be named in the opinion letter.  The 
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financial information provided to the auditor was not complete or the company’s accounting 

methods do not follow Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.  

Disclaimer of Opinion 

When an auditor is not able to express an opinion, it is generally because the company did not 

provide enough financial information for an audit.  Opinion letters with such a disclaimer are 

relatively rare, but they may be viewed as indications that the company refused to cooperate with 

the auditor after engaging their services.  Such a letter casts doubt on the quality of the company 

and its management 

Adverse Opinion 

This is a failing grade.  The auditor is saying that the financial statements are not accurate or 

complete.  The statements do not present the company’s financial position or results in 

accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.  Such as opinion letter is a warning 

that the financial statements do not give a fair view of the company 

Balance Sheet 

Reflects a firm’s solvency 

Reports a firm’s assets, liabilities and stockholders’ equity (aka net worth and capital) as of a 

specific moment in time 

• Assets

Things of value, which are owned by the business such as cash, accounts receivable,

inventory and equipment

• Liabilities

Debts owed by the firm such as notes payable, accounts payable, etc.

• Stockholders’ Equity

The owners’ interest in the business.  It consists of owners’ investments or withdrawals,

profits made, which have not been withdrawn or losses incurred.  Profits and losses are

combined in an account called retained earnings.

13
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Income Statement 

Reports a firm’s profitability for a stated period.  Profitability is measured in each period by 

comparing the revenues generated with costs and expenses incurred to produce those revenues. 

Statement of Retained Earnings 

This statement reflects the change in retained earnings from one accounting period to another by 

determining if retained earnings increased by the exact amount of profits earned for the period or 

losses incurred for the period.  If retained earnings did not increase by the same amount as profits 

earned, it could mean that a dividend was declared, or the owners withdrew funds out of the 

company.   

Statement of Cash Flows 

Shows the cash inflows and cash outflows from operating activities, investing activities and 

financing activities. 

▪ Operating Activities

Generally, includes the cash effects of transactions and other events that enter the

determination of net income.  It is the cash generated or used in producing profits or

losses.

▪ Investing Activities

Generally, includes the cash effects of transactions involving the acquisition or disposal

of fixed assets

▪ Financing Activities

Generally, includes the cash effects of transactions and other events involving creditors

and owners

Financial Notes 

Notes to the Financial Statements (as they are referred to) provide more detailed information 

about significant accounts on the balance sheet and income statement.  They may cover areas 

such as: 

▪ Accounts Receivable:  Amount of allowance for doubtful accounts and charges to

earnings.

▪ Inventory:  State the inventory costing method and the components of inventory

▪ Fixed Assets:  State the depreciation method utilized, the estimated useful lives of assets

and the components of fixed assets

14



Reconcilement of Retained Earnings and Net Worth 

Retained Earnings 

Determining whether a company has declared a dividend payment or withdrew cash out of the 

company other than in the form of salaries, bonuses or loans can be determined by reconciling 

the change in Retained Earnings.  The formula to do this is as follows: 

Beginning Retained Earnings 

Plus: Profits earned in the current period 

Or 

Minus: Losses incurred in the current period 

Expected Ending Retained Earnings 

Actual Ending Retained Earnings 

Rule: If the Actual Ending Retained Earnings is less than Expected: A Dividend was declared 

Please review the following information and determine if any dividends were declared 

Net Earnings             2019                        2020               2021

        19,863     43,042 59,677 

Stockholders' equity 
Capital stock, issued and outstanding 

150,000 shares 37,500 37,500 37,500 

Paid-in capital 22,500 22,500 22,500 

Retained earnings 3,079 46,121 105,798 

Total stockholders' equity 63,079 106,121 165,798 

Dividends Declared ________      ________ 
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ACCOUNTANT PREPARED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

TYPES OF FINANCIAL REPORTS 

Compilation 

Non-disclosure 

Full disclosure 

▪ The CPA puts information provided by the client in proper financial statement form.

▪ It is in accordance with GAAP

▪ It does not express any assurances

▪ The CPA is not required to make inquiries of management or perform other procedures to

verify, corroborate, or review information provided by the client.

Review 

▪ CPA makes certain inquiries of management and performs analytical procedures.

▪ Not required to understand the company’s internal structure, test accounting records,

observe inventory, confirm receivables, or obtain other corroborating evidence, as

required in an audit engagement.

Audit 

CPA goes beyond a review and on a test basis, examines evidence supporting the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. 
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The Accounting Firm of  

DEWEY, CHEATUM & HOWE  

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REVIEW REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 

Johnson Enterprises, Ltd.  

San Diego, California  

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Johnson Enterprises, Ltd. 

and subsidiary as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of 

income, partners’ capital, and cash flows for the years then ended. A review includes primarily 

applying analytical procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries of company 

management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the 

expression of an opinion regarding the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, we do not 

express such an opinion.  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 

America and for designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements.  

Our responsibility is to conduct the reviews in accordance with Statements on Standards for 

Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public 

Accountants. Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance that 

there are no material modifications that should be made to the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the results of our procedures prove a reasonable basis for our report.  

Based on our reviews, except for the matters discussed in the following paragraphs, we are not 

aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying consolidated 

financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America.  

As disclosed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America require that depreciation expense be recorded using an 

accepted systematic and rational depreciation method and that interest income be accrued on 

mortgages receivable. Management has informed us that the Company has recorded depreciation 

expense using the modified accelerated cost recovery system (MACRS), which is used for 

income tax purposes. The MACRS method is not an accepted method under accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Management has also informed us 

that interest income on mortgages receivable is recorded on a cash basis. The effects of these 

departures from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America on 

consolidated financial positions, results of operations, and cash flows have not been determined. 
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As disclosed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America also require management to assess whether the 

Corporation has a controlling interest in any entities in which the Corporation has a variable 

interest in order to determine if those entities should be consolidated. Management has not 

performed the required assessment and, therefore, if there are variable interest entities for which 

the Corporation is the primary beneficiary, it has not consolidated those entities. Although the 

effects on the financial statements of management’s failure to perform the required assessment 

have not been determined, many elements in the financial statements would have been materially 

affected had management determined that the Corporation is the primary beneficiary of any 

variable interest entities.  

Our reviews were made for the purpose of expressing a conclusion that there are not material 

modifications that should be made to the consolidated financial statements in order for them to 

be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The consolidating information included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and 

consolidated statement of operations is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the 

consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial position and results of 

operation of the individual companies. The information included in the accompany consolidated 

schedules of operating expenses is presented only for the purposes of additional analysis and has 

been subjected to the inquiry and analytical procedures applied in the review of the basic 

consolidated financial statements, and we are not aware of any material modifications that should 

be made thereto.  

Dewey Cheatum & Howe, LLC 
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NOTE 2 – DEPARTURES FROM ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES GENERALLY 

ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICAN  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that 

depreciation expense be recorded using an accepted systematic and rational depreciation method 

and that interest income be accrued on mortgages receivable. Management has informed us that 

the Company has recorded depreciation expense using the modified accelerated cost recovery 

system (MACRS), which is used for income tax purposes. The MACRS method is not an 

accepted method under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Management has also informed us that interest income on mortgages receivable is recorded on a 

cash basis. The effects of these departures from accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States of America on consolidated financial positions, results of operations, and cash 

flows have not been determined.  

Additionally, accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America also 

require management to assess whether the Corporation has a controlling interest in any entities in 

which the Corporation has a variable interest in order to determine if those entities should be 

consolidated. Management has not performed the required assessment and, it has not 

consolidated those entities. Although the effects on the financial statement of management’s 

failure to perform the required assessment have not been determined, many elements in the 

financial statements would have been materially affected had management determined that the 

Corporation is the primary beneficiary of any variable interest entities. 
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INTERPRETATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS 
The balance sheet is a picture of a company at a given point in time. The balance sheet identifies 

all assets, liabilities and net worth of a company. The accounting or balance sheet equation is: 

Assets = liabilities + net worth. 

Assets consist of current assets, fixed assets, intermediate assets and other assets as follows: 

CURRENT ASSETS  CURRENT LIABILITIES 

• Cash Short Term Notes Payable 

• Marketable Securities Line of Credit 

• Accounts Receivable Current Portion of LTD 

• Allowance for Doubt Account (Contra Account) Accounts Payable 

• Inventory Accrued Expenses 

• Pre-paid Expenses Income Tax Payable 

• Income Tax Refund

FIXED ASSETS LONG TERM DEBT 

• Land Long Term Notes Payable 

• Buildings Mortgage Payable 

• Equipment Deferred Taxes 

• Furniture & Fixtures Due to Officers 

• Leasehold Improvements

• Operating Leases

• Capital Leases

• Accumulated Depreciation (Contra Account)

OTHER ASSETS NET WORTH 

• Due from Stockholders Common Stock 

• Employee Advances Preferred Stock 

• Due from Related Companies Paid-In-Capital (Surplus) 

• Other Receivables Retained Earnings 

• Deposits Treasury Stock 

• Intangibles

• Deferred Assets

• Investments

• Other Non-Operating Assets
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INCOME STATEMENT ANALYSIS 

The income statement shows the amount of sales/revenues generated and cost/expenses incurred.  

The bottom line of an income statement indicates whether the entity earned a profit or incurred a 

loss.  Unlike a balance sheet, which captures the value of assets, liabilities and net worth at a 

specific point in time, the income statement captures activity over a period. The business has 

generated revenues from sales and paid total expenses. The typical income statement is 

structured as follows: 

Sales 

- Cost of Goods Sold

= Gross Profit 

- Operating expenses (selling expenses, general and administrative expenses)

= Operating income 

- Non-operating expenses (interest expense, other nonrecurring expenses)

+ Non-operating income (interest income, other nonrecurring income)

= Net income before tax 

+ Taxes

= Net profit after tax 
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HOW THE INCOME STATEMENT AND BALANCE SHEET ARE RELATED 

Economic events will typically start through an entry onto the Income Statement and the results 

of that event will find its way to the Balance Sheet.  In other words, whatever occurs on the 

Income Statement will end up on the Balance Sheet. 

Another perspective is that the Balance Sheet is the end results of what occurred on the Income 

Statement.  Using the chart below, match the items on the Income Statement with the 

corresponding Balance Sheet Account shown below the chart.  This will strengthen your 

understanding of the Income Statement / Balance Sheet relationship and should enhance your 

understanding of Ratio and Cash Flow Analysis. 

Income Statement Balance Sheet 

Sales for Cash →→→→→ ___________________ 

Sales on Account →→→→→ ___________________ 

Billed for Work not completed →→→→→ ___________________ 

Work Completed but under billed →→→→→ ___________________ 

Retainer Fee Before Work Performed →→→→→ ___________________ 

Cost of Goods Sold   →→→→→ ___________________ 

___________________ 

Operating Expenses  →→→→→ ___________________ 

___________________ 

\Depreciation Expense →→→→→ ___________________ 

Interest Expense →→→→→ ___________________ 

Interest (Investment) Income →→→→→ ___________________ 

→→→→→ ___________________ 

Non-Operating Exp. →→→→ ______________

Income Tax Expense  →→→→→ __________________ 

Profit  →→→→ ______________ 
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Loss →→→→ ______________ 

Dividend Declared     →→→→→ __________________ 

Receipt of Cash in Excess of 

Par Stock Value →→→→→ __________________ 

Cash Invested without Stock Issuance  →→→→→ __________________ 

Principal Payment on Long Term Debt →→→→→ __________________ 

Accounts Receivable  Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 

Inventory Other Liabilities 

Income Tax Payable  Dividend Payable 

Notes Payable Interest Payable 

Accrued Expenses Cash 

Accounts Payable Retained Earnings 

Pre-Paid Expenses  Investments 

Billings in Excess of Cost Cost in Excess of Billings 

Capital Surplus Paid in Capital 

Deferred Revenue Unearned Revenue 

Current Portion of LTD Accumulated Depreciation 
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HIGHWAY SAFETY EQUIPMENT COMPANY, INC. (HSE) 

Highway Safety Equipment Company, Inc. Manufacturing Company manufactures construction 
site caution signs such as those you often see on construction sites on the highways including 
yellow and orange cones, barrels, flashing lights, manhole covers and skirts to protect workers 
going into and out of the manholes. HSE is a family own business that was founded 50 years ago 
when the freeway system in the US began to explode. The company has enjoyed success especially 
over the past 25 years as construction and repair became necessary to maintain an aging freeway 
system. 

Most of the business HSE obtains is strictly on a bid basis. The company has become very astute 
in the bidding process by landing a high percentage of jobs sought. Management attributes this to 
a combination of knowing the company's cost structure, skill level of the workers, understanding 
of the bidding process and a little luck. Rarely HSE loses money on any job. When a loss occurs, 
it is due to a higher than usual rate of damage to the construction objects cause by drivers speeding 
through construction sites. Liability is a real issue for HSE because occasionally, speeders will 
sue the company sighting the construction objects caused them to crash because of where they are 
placed. This is a real issue because construction workers may place the construction objects in 
areas that could cause a problem. Their focus is on protecting themselves as opposed to placing 
the objects strategically to maximize protection and prove safe for the drivers. HSE manufactures 
its products in two plants, one in Washington and the other in Illinois. 

You are a Commercial Relationship Manager at your bank and you made a call on Highway Safety 
Equipment Company, Inc. HSE has been on your prospect list for years because it has a reputation 
of being a well organized and managed organization and has been operating in your community 
for the past 30 years. 

On your recent visit, you met with Jay Johnson, Chief Financial Officer, who surprised you by 
providing a window of opportunity. It appears the relationship with Bank 
of Washington , their present bank, is deteriorating to the point where HSE is now open to new 
possibilities. Of course, being the conservative banker you are, you wonder what caused the 
souring relationship. 

As you receive the financial information, Jay informs you that HSE is contemplating acquiring a 
sophisticated piece of equipment that will cost $1,000,000. HSE is in the business of 
manufacturing road side safety equipment such as those orange cones and barrels you see on 
highway construction sites as well as man hole covers and the skirts that enclose man holes when 
work is being performed. This new equipment will make HSE more efficient than any of its 
competitors. 

Your assignment is to thoroughly analyze HSE with the information provided and prepare a 
presentation to your Loan Committee for the $1,000,000 term loan. The annual principal payment 
on the proposed loan is $225,000. In your analysis, assume all supporting information you would 
ordinarily request is satisfactory to your bank. 
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AB & C, P.C. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors 

Highway Safety Equipment Company, Inc. ("The Company") 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of The Company (an S-Corporation) as of 
December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of operations and retained earnings 
and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with general accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of The Company as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the 
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole. The accompanying Supplementary Schedules I-III are presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

AB & C, P.C.

April 10, 2020 
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Highway Safety Manufacturing, Inc. 

CURRENT ASSETS: 

Cash 
Accounts Receivable, Net 
Inventory 
Prepaid Expenses 
Notes Receivable - Current Portion 

Total Current Assets 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Land 
Buildings 
Machinery & Equipment 
Autos & Trucks 
Office Furniture & Fixtures 
Patterns & Molds 
Patents 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 

Net Property, Plant & Equipment 

OTHER ASSETS: 

Investment - ABA Partnership 
Investment - Rabbi Trust 
Notes Receivable - Shareholders, Net 
Cash Value - Officers' Life Insurance 
Deposits 
Patents Pending 

Total Other Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

Balance Sheet 
As of December 31 

ASSETS 

2017 % 

$ 3,291 
1,291,080 
2,465,806 

21,613 
19,188 

3,800,978 

37,765 
483,743 

1,108,534 
52,505 

272,410 
66,158 

405,064 
2,426,179 

(1,631,044} 

795,135 

71,883 
-0-

125,440 
18,207 
15,313 
25,899 

256,742 

$4,852,855 

2018 

$ 107,036 
1,009,314 
2,279,892 

16,224 
11,227 

3,423,693 

37,765 
492,831 

1,117,421 
52,505 

429,017 
105,957 
339,057 

2,574,553 

(1,680,054) 

894,499 

71,818 
-0-

106,530 
19,124 
37,049 
19,723 

254,244 

$4,572,436 

% 2019 

$ 52,039 
1,280,430 
2,205,935 

17,076 
12,464 

3,567,944 

37,765 
498,436 

1,216,916 
54,569 

490,330 
140,668 
355,386 

2,794,070 

(1,852,934) 

941,136 

-0-
21,456 
94,066 
19,592 
57,974 
21,287 

214,375 

$4,723,455 

The accompanying report and notes to financial statements are integral parts of these statements. 

% 
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Highway Safety Manufacturing, Inc. 
Balance Sheet 

As of December 31, 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

2017 2018 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable $1,008,775 $ 476,569 
Notes Payable - Bank 455,759 500,000 
Notes Payable - Current Portion 100,623 132,643 
Accrued Commissions 59,196 55,287 
Accrued Salaries & Bonuses 211,030 173,357 
Accrued Other Liabilities 87,264 79,706 

Total Current Liabilities 1,922,647 1,417,562 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES: 

Notes Payable 350,391 372,674 
Mortgages Payable 598,361 587,951 
Deferred Compensation 0 140,668 
Less: Current Portion of Long Term Debt {100,6231 {132,643l 

Total Long-Term Liabilites 848,129 968,650 

Total Liabilities 2,770,776 2,386,212 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY: 

Common Stock, No Par, 50,000 Shares 
Authorized, 22,205 Shares Issued 
and Outstanding 25,000 25,000 

Paid-In Capital 11,766 11,766 
Retained Earnings 2,045,313 2,149,458 

Total Stockholders' Equity 2,082,079 2,186,224 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 4,852,855 $ 4,572,436 

The accompanying report and notes to financial statements are intergral parts of these 
statements. 

% 2019 % 

$ 506,961 
150,000 
134,140 

43,077 
305,956 

75,442 

1,215,576 

313,379 
576,479 
309,267 

(134,140) 

1,064,985 

2,280,561 

25,000 
11,766 

2,406,128 

2,442,894 

$ 4,723,455 
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Highway Safety Manufacturing, Inc. 
Statement of Operations and Retained Earnings 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

Amount Percent of Sales 

2017 2018 2019 2018 2019 
$ 9,037,606 $ 8,256,972 $ 9,544,948 100.00% 100.00% 

6,977,156 6,123,634 6,806,593 74.16 71.31 

2,060,450 2,133,338 2,738,355 25.84 28.69 

695,555 778,642 819,194 9.43 8.58 
669,735 801,974 8.11 8.40 

Sales 
Cost of Goods Sold 

Gross Profit on Sales 

Operating Expenses: 

Selling Expenses 
Administrative Exp E

Total Oper Exp 1,197,570 1,448,377 1,621,168 17.54 16.98 

I 
Operating Profit (Loss) 862,880 684,961 1,117,187 8.30 11.71 

Other Inc/(Exp) (101,498) (131,056) (96,485) (1.59) (1.01) 

Income Before Deferred 
Compensation and 
Profit Sharing 761,382 553,905 1,020,702 6.71 10.70 

280,116 175,656 324,305 2.13 3.40 
140,668 168,599 1.70 1.77 

Bonuses 
Deferred Compensation

Profit Sharing Contribution 25,980 22,400 28,051 .27 0.29 

Income Before 
Discontinued Operations 455,286 $ 215,181 499,747 

Loss From Discontinued 
Operations at Subsidiary (283,431) 0 0 

NET INCOME 171,855 215,181 499,747 2.61% 5.24% 

Beginning Balance 
Retained 
Earnings 1,873,458 2,045,313 2,149,458 

Less Distributions to 
Shareholders -0- (111,036) (243,077) 

Ending Balance 
Retained 
Earnings $2,045,313 $2,149,458 $2,406,128 

502,015
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Highway Safety Manufacturing, Inc. 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended December 31, 

2018 2019 
Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 

Net Income $ 215,181 $ 499,747

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net 
Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation and Amortization 175,830 234,182 
Gain on Sale of Assets (3,746) (15,702) 
Increase/Decrease in Accounts Receivable 281,766 (271,116) 
Decrease in Inventory 185,915 73,957 
Increase/Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 5,389 (852) 
Increase/Decrease in Accounts Payable (532,206) 30,392 
Increase/Decrease in Accrued Liabilities (49,140) 116,125 
Increase in Deferred Compensation 140,668 168,599 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 419,657 835,332 

Cash Flow From Investing Activities: 

Purchase of Equipment (288,238) (298,012) 
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 16,790 23,207 
Collections from Notes and Investments 26,871 83,045 
Increase in Investment - Rabbi Trust -0- (21,456) 
Increase in Other Assets (16,412) (22,957� 

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities (260,989) (236,173) 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities: 

Borrowing under Line of Credit 400,000 225,000 
Payments on Line of Credit (355,760) (575,000) 
Proceeds from Notes Payable 120,000 71,820 
Payments on Notes Payable (108,127) (132,899) 
Distributions to Shareholders (111,036) �243,077) 

Net Cash Used By Financing Activities (54,923) (654,156) 

Net Decrease/Increase in Cash 103,745 (54,997) 
Cash at Beginning of Year 3,291 107,036 

Cash at End of Year $ 107,036 $ 52,039 

The accompanying report and notes to financial statements are integral parts 
of these statements. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE I 

Schedule of Cost of Goods Sold 

For the Years Ended December 31, 
Amount Percent of Sales 

2018 2019 2018 2019 

Beginning Inventory $2,465,806 $2,279,892 
Purchases 3,520,337 4,171,767 
Freight 71,432 104,905 

Less Ending Inventory (2,279,892) (2,205,935) 

Cost of Material Sold 3,777,683 4,350,629 45.75 45.58 
Direct Labor 580,052 708,436 7.03 7.42 
Factory Burden Consumed 1,765,899 1,747,528 21.38 18.31 

COST OF GOODS SOLD $6,123,634 $6,806,593 74.16 71.31 

Schedule of Factory Burden 
Auto and Travel Expense $ 4,395 $ 5,008 .0 .05 
Depreciation 113,242 138,263 1.3 1.45 
Employee Benefits 19,174 26,295 .2 .28 
Engineering Expenses 41,336 39,421 .5 .41 
Indirect Labor-

Supervision 88,671 91,601 2.2 2.01 
Labor-Engineering & 

Research 114,915 123,538 1.3 1.29 
Indirect Labor-Other 327,036 407,316 3.9 4.27 
Insurance 157,544 110,280 1.9 1.16 
Insurance-Employee Health 126,138 102,633 1.5 1.08 
Insurance-Employee Life 12,481 9,349 .1 .10 
Miscellaneous 50,823 51,028 .6 .53 
Patent Expense 51,277 39,426 .6 .41 
Repairs and Maintenance 69,367 56,232 .8 .59 
Rent 88,480 90,100 1.0 .94 
Research and Development 37,841 14,886 .4 .16 
Shipping Supplies 20,005 33,756 .2 .35 
Shop Supplies and Tools 65,833 71,966 .8 .75 
Taxes-Payroll 98,484 104,275 1.1 1.09 
Taxes-Other 53,867 46,071 .6 .48 
Utilities 61,811 68,340 .7 .72 
Warranty Expense 63,179 17,744 .7 .19 

TOTAL FACTORY BURDEN $1,765,899 $1,747,52 21.3 18.31 

See accountant's report. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE II 

Schedule of Selling Expenses 
For the Years Ended December 31, 

Amount Percent of Sales 

2018 2019 2018 2019 

Advertising $ 157,624 $ 164,749 1.92% 1.73% 
Customer Relations 19,442 19,389 .24 .20 
Demonstrator Equipment 31,755 27,383 .38 .29 
Depreciation 5,590 8,757 .07 .09 
Dues and Subscriptions 578 535 .01 .01 
Employee Benefits 3,441 1,421 .04 .02 
Insurance 15,104 12,455 .18 .13 
Insurance-Employee Health 11,362 8,470 .14 .09 
Insurance-Employee Life 1,117 943 .01 .01 
Sales Auto Expense 11,344 15,412 .14 .16 
Sales Commissions 242,947 246,024 2.94 2.58 
Salaries 176,239 167,756 2.13 1.76 
Taxes 19,069 15,479 .23 .16 
Telephone 16,418 24,752 .20 .26 
Travel 32,431 51,581 .39 .53 
Miscellaneous 34,181 54,088 .41 .56 

TOTAL SELLING EXPENSE $ 778,642 $ 819,194 9.43% 8.58& 

Schedule of Other Income and Expense 

Interest Income $ 13,476 $ 12,190 .16% .13% 
Miscellaneous Income 
(Expense) (5,719) (27,207) (.07) (.29) 
Reorganization Expense (18,944) -0- (.23) (.00) 
Gain on Sale of Assets 3,746 15,702 .05 .16 
Interest Expense (123,615) (97,170) (1.50) (1.01) 

TOTAL OTHER INCOME AND 
EXPENSE $ (131,056) $ (96,485) (1.59) % (1.01)% 

See accountant's report. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE Ill 

Schedule of Administrative Expenses 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

Amount Percent of Sales 
2018 2019 2018 2019 

Auto $ 4,156 $ 7,322 .05% .08% 
Bad Debts -0- 19,312 .00 .20 
Depreciation 21,852 49,375 .26 .52 
Director's Fees 2,000 3,705 .02 .04 
Dues and Subscriptions 3,585 3,380 .04 .04 
Employee Benefits 6,814 12,403 .08 .13 
Insurance 16,759 40,987 .20 .43 
Insurance-Employee Health 22,657 17,004 .27 .18 
Insurance-Employee Life 4,124 2,339 .05 .02 
Miscellaneous 11,053 19,702 .14 .20 
Office Repairs and 

Maintenance 14,055 27,062 .17 .28 
Office Supplies and 

Expense 34,244 40,453 .41 .42 
Postage 5,747 6,903 .07 .07 
Professional Fees 52,519 34,630 .63 .36 
Salaries-Office 195,306 215,431 2.38 2.26 
Salaries-Officers 202,548 220,825 2.46 2.31 
Taxes-Miscellaneous 1,696 1,585 .02 .02 
Taxes-Payroll 28,783 30,327 .35 .32 
Taxes-Property 2,172 1,851 .03 .02 
Telephone 24,059 27,530 .29 .29 
Travel 15,606 19,849 .19 .21 
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSES $ 669,735 $ 801,975 8.11% 8.40% 

See accountant's report. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

This summary of significant accounting policies of The Company (the Company) is presented 
to assist in understading the Company's financial statements. The financial statements and notes are 

n

representations of the Company's management who is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. 

Business Activity 
The Company was organized in 1967 for the purpose of manufacturing and marketing products 

to the utility industry in the United States, Canada, and foreign markets. The Company manufactures its 
products in Littleton, Colorado and markets them through a nationwide distributor and representative 
network. 

Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market. Inventories as of December 31, 

2019 and 2018 are as follows: 

2019 2018 

Raw Materials $1,132,959 $1,033,360 

Work in Process 349,072 329,13 

Finished Goods 683,038 899,059 

Demonstrators 40,866 18,342 

Total Inventory $2,205,935 $2,279,892 

Prepaid Expenses 
Prepaid expenses consist of prepaid insurance and loan fees and are amortized over the 

contractual period. 

Property, Plant & Equipment 
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accwnulated depreciation and are 

depreciated over the estimated life of each asset. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the 
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss 
is recognized. Expenditures for major renewals and betterments that extend the useful lives of assets are 
capitalized, costs of maintenance and repairs are charged to income as incurred. Depreciation has been 
provided utilizing both straight-line and accelerated methods. 

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 is as follows: 

Estimated 
2019 2018 Useful Life 

Buildings and Improvements $ 13,417 $ 13,516 20-40 Years

Autos and Trucks 8,286 914 5 Years

Machinery and Equipment 104,389 95,576 7-10 Years

Office Furniture and 60,066 33,091 5-10 Years

Fixtures 

Patents 29,805 29,173 10-17 Years

Patterns and Molds 18,219 3,560 7-10 Years

Total $ 234,182 $ 175,830 

Fixed assets capitalized as acquired under capital leases consist of equipment with a cost of 
$555,789 and accumulated depreciation of $392,363. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PLOICIES (Continued) 

Miscellaneous 
Research and development expenditures are expensed as incurred. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

Income Taxes 
The Company elected to be taxed as an S corporation beginning in 1991. Under 

these provisions, The Company does not pay taxes on its corporate income but passes 
through that income to its shareholders who are liable for income taxes on their 
proportionate share. The Company pays an annual franchise tax to the state of California. 

Note 2 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

The Company follows the allowance method of providing for uncollectible 
accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts was $5,400 and $8,682 at 
December 31, 2019, and 2018, respectively. Charges to earnings for the years ended 
December 31, 2019 and 2018 were $19,312 and $-0-, respectively. 

Note 3 - NOTES PAYABLE - SHORT TERM 

The Company's short-term debt consists of the following: 

Bank line of credit of 

$1,000,000 collateralized by 

accounts receivable, contract 

rights, intangibles, inventory 

and equipment of The Company, 

accruing interest at the bank's 

prime rate plus one-quarter 

percent. The note is due in June, 

2020. The note is guaranteed by 

the principal shareholder of The 

Company 

Current portion of long-term debt 

Total Short-Term Debt 

2019 2018 

$ 150,000 $ 500,000 

134,140 132,643 

$ 284,140 $ 632,643 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Note 4 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES 

The Company's long-term debt consists of the following: 

Capital leases on equipment purchased under 
non-cancelable lease agreements. The economic 
substance of the leases is that The Company 
is financing the acquisition of those assets 
through the leases. Payable in monthly 
installments of $4,556 including principal 
and interest at 8% with the final payment 
due September, 2023. 

Note payable to a financial 
institution collateralized by 
a pressbrake, payable in 
monthly installments of 
$1,476, including interest at 
8.58%. The final payment is 
due February, 2022. 

Note payable to a financial 
institution collateralized by 
accounts receivable, inventory 
and equipment of the Company, 
payable in monthly principal 
installments of$3,229, plus 
interest at the bank's prime 
rate plus three-quarters 
percent. The final payment is 
due October 1, 2023. 

Note payable to a financial 
institution collateralized by 
computer equipment of The 
Company payable in 60 monthly 
principal installments of 
$2,483 plus interest at the 
bank's prime rate plus three
quarter's percent. The final 
payment is due March 1, 2023. 

Mortgage payable 
collateralized by the 
Company's main building at 
2500 S. Tejon St., Littleton, 
CO. The mortgage is payable in 
monthly installments of 5,691 
payable for 20 years with the 
remaining unpaid balance due 
on October 4, 2032. The 
mortgage accrues interest at 
the rate of9.75% per annum. 

$ 136,460 

61,877 

32,292 

82,750 

576,479 

$ 189,082 

-0-

71,042 

112,550 

587,951 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Note 4 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES 
(Continued) 

Amount accrued under a 
deferred compensation 
agreement payable to managing 
officers of The Company under 
terms of the agreement (see 
note 8). 

Subtotal 

Less current portion of long

term debt 

Total Long-Term Debt 

309,267 

1,199,125 

(134,140) 

$1,064,985 

The following is a schedule of maturities of long-term debt: 
2020
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024
4 Thereafter 

134,140 
107,856 
93,706 
33,596 
21,562 

808,265 
$1,199,125 

140,668 

1,101,293 

(132,643) 

$ 968,650 

The following is a schedule of minimum lease payments required under the capital leases: 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2024 

54,675 
54,675 
41,006 

-0-
$ 150.356 

Note 5 - EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN AND TRUST 

The Company has adopted an employee's profit sharing retirement plan which 
includes employee contributions through a 401K plan with The Company matching one 
half of employee contributions up to a maximum of 2% of eligible annual salaries. All 
employees of The Company are eligible to participate after reaching age 21 and one year of 
employment. In addition, the plan allows the Board of Directors, at its discretion, to make 
additional contributions to the plan. The Company's profit sharing contribution for the 
years ended December 31, 2019, and 2018 was $28,051 and $22,400, respectively. 
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Note 6 -CORPORATION INCOME TAXES 

The Company elected to become an S-corporation beginning in 2000. Therefore, no 
income taxes are recorded by The Company as the shareholders are liable for income taxes 
on the corporation's income allocated to them. 

Note 7 -RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Company had the following related party transactions: 

The Company sold a building to a partnership of its principal shareholders in 2014. 
The partnership assumed the existing mortgage and executed a promissory note to The 
Company for $173,968 which is payable over a 15 year period with monthly payments of 
$1,922, including principal and interest at 10.5%. The Company remains contingently 
liable for the mortgage. The balance on the note was $106,530 and $117,757 as of 
December 31, 2019, and 2018, respectively. The Company also entered into a lease 
agreement for this facility for a period of five years with monthly rental payments of 
$5,833. The Company is responsible for taxes, insurance and maintenance of the property. 
The lease expires in April, 2024. 

Note 8 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

The Company entered into a deferred compensation agreement during 2018 with 
two executive management officers to provide for compensation for future retirement. The 
agreement requires the company to accrue deferred benefits equal to 12% of operating 
income as defined in the agreement. The accrued benefit each year is limited to no more 
than 50% of the net income after a provision for taxes. The Company accrued $168,599 
and $140,668 under the terms of the agreement for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 
2018, respectively. The plan requires funding through a Rabbi Trust of 15% per year of the 
accrued benefits until fully funded. The benefits normally vest at the rate of 10% per year 
with varying provisions as specified under the agreement. The benefits are payable on sale 
of The Company or the employee's termination, death or retirement. 

Note 9- OPERATING LEASES 

The Company leases two plant facilities in Colorado for its operations. Lease 
obligations are as follows: 

Raritan Property-Monthly rental is $5,833 with the lease expiring in April, 2024 
(See Note 7). The lease has a renewal option at similar terms every two years. 

Warehouse Property-Monthly rental is $1,675 with the lease expiring in 
December, 2024. 
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The Company is obligated under several operating leases for office and telephone 
equipment, 

The following is a schedule of minimum lease payments required under these 
operating leases: 

2020 96,820 
2021 23,333 

Note 10 -CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

The Company considers all short-term investments with an original maturity of 
three months or less to be a cash equivalent. 

Cash paid for interest and income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2019, and 
2018, consists of the following: 

Interest 

Income Taxes 

2019

$ 96,392 

$ 800 

2018 

$123,645 

$ 800 
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Bankers Insight Group 

Current Asset Analysis

Current assets are listed first on the balance sheet because they are the most liquid. They convert 

to cash in less than twelve months. 

CASH 

Cash consists of cash in banks, cash on hand and marketable securities. It would appear to be the 

most liquid asset and usually is. However, it may be pledged as collateral and not readily 

available to the company. Conservative companies generally have more cash on hand. Other 

conservative companies have less cash since they use the cash to quickly pay down short-term 

bank debt to lower interest costs. Rapidly growing or poorly managed companies have less cash 

available. Lenders should not make decisions based on cash balances kept in the bank unless the 

cash will be placed in a savings certificate to be pledged to secure the loan. Many charged-off 

loans had cash balances, and some very high cash balances, before they got into trouble. 

Companies need a minimum amount of cash to operate and the lender should be sure enough 

cash is available. 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Accounts receivable are amounts owed to a company for a product sold on credit or a service 

provided for credit. Accounts receivable are listed second on the balance sheet because they turn 

to cash more quickly than inventory. The number of accounts, average size, validity and length 

of relationship are all key issues. For example, the lender will want to know if the business has 

50 accounts averaging $50 each or 50 accounts averaging $1,000 each.  Both present collection 

issues. If in default, it may not be worth the bank’s time to pursue all 50 accounts averaging $50; 

however, it would be worth pursuing the 50 accounts averaging $1,000 each.   

Validity is another issue for the lender. Will the borrower’s customer pay the amount owed? The 

receivable may not be valid due to poor product quality. Or was the service or product really sold 

and does the company owing the money have the ability to repay? Credit approval and collection 

processes are key issues in collecting accounts receivable. 

The lender will establish advance rates on the accounts receivable depending on the age, mix and 

collection experience of the company. The advance rates will vary by industry and experience. 

Allowance for Bad Debt is the amount available to charge off bad debts. The allowance is based 

on past charge-off experience and the current aging. Bad debt expense is charged on the income 

statement each month and accumulates on the balance sheet. When the company has a loss, the 

allowance is charged. If no allowance is listed, then the company directly charges the income 

statement when a bad debt occurs. This can result in large profit variations depending on the 

years’ experience. 
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Bankers Insight Group 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE MECHANICS 

• Advance Rate

• Dilution

• Invoice Size

• Account Debtors

• Concentration

• Advance Rate should be based upon:

– Dilution Rates

– Invoice Size

– Nature of Account Debtors

– Concentration

– Advance Rate means the amount lender is willing to lend against the asset

• Dilution

– Measures how much of each sale dollar comes back to the seller or is not

collected due to.  Includes:

• Credit Memos

• Returned Goods (defective)

• Mispricing

• Invoice Errors

• Advertising Allowances

• Trade Discounts

– Should be calculated monthly and calculate the 12-month average

• The typical Advance Rate against Accounts Receivable assumes a 5% or less Dilution

Rate.

• The higher the Dilution Rate, the lower the Advance Rate

A/R Advance Rates Dilution Rate 

80% - 85% 5% - 6% 

75% – 80% 6% - 10% 

70% - 75% 11%-15% 

60% and lower over 15% 
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Bankers Insight Group 

Accounts Receivable Aging Schedule 

DARCY COMPANY 

Accounts Receivable Aging Schedule 

December 31, 2011 
Number of Days Past Due 

Customer 

Account 

Receivable 

Balance 

Not Yet 

Due 1-30 31-60 61-90 Over 90 

X $5,000 $5,000 

Y $14,000 $12,000 $2,000 

Z $400 $200 $200 

All others $808,600 $560,000 $240,000 $2,000 $600 $6,000 

Estimated 

uncollectible 

percentage 

$828,000 $560,000 

1% 

$252,000 

5% 

$4,000 

10% 

$800 

25% 

$11,200 

50% 

Estimated 

amount 

uncollectible 

$24,400 $5,600 $12,600 $400 $200 $5,600 

 

Balance in the 

accounts 

receivable 

account in the 

general ledger

Desired credit balance 

in the allowance for 

uncollectible accounts
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Bankers Insight Group 

INVENTORY 

Inventory consists of supplies that are used to produce products or goods. These can include: 

• Raw material

• Work in process

• Finished goods

Raw material and work in process are only found on manufacturer balance sheets. Raw material 

consists of the raw product used to make a product. It does not include labor. Work in process is 

the amount of products in the process of completion (raw material plus labor). Finished products 

are the finished product including all costs of raw material and labor. 

Inventory for a farm operation may include: 

• Grain/feed on hand

• Cash invested in growing crops

• Livestock held

• Supplies (chemicals, etc.)

Lenders and Analysts should know if the inventory is valued utilizing Specific Identification, 

Average Cost, LIFO or FIFO methods to determine the advance rate for collateral purposes. 

Also, the borrower’s relationship with suppliers will need to be considered. Suppliers may also 

be purchasers of the product or service and may have offsetting accounts payable for the lender 

to consider. 
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Bankers Insight Group 

INVENTORY 

COMPARISON OF COSTING METHODS 

FIFO LIFO 

SALES $12,000 $12,000 

Less: Cost of Goods Sold 

Opening Inventory -0- -0-

+ Purchases:

500 units @ $8 4,000 4,000 

200 units @ $9 1,800 1,800 

400 units @ $10 4,000 4,000 

600 units @ $11 6,600 6,600 

Total Goods Available for 

Sale 

16,400 16,400 

Less:  Ending Inventory (7,600) (5,800) ⧫ 

= Cost of Goods Sold (8,800) (10,600) 

Gross Profit 3,200 1,400 

Less: Income Taxes (960) (420) 

= Net Profit $2,240 $980 

 600 Units @ $11 = $6,600 

    100 Units @ $10 = $1,000 

$7,600 

⧫ 500 Units @ $8 = $4,000 

    200 Units @ $9 =  $1,800 

$5,800 
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Bankers Insight Group 

Determining Ending Inventory Under Weighted-Average Method Using 

Perpetual Inventory Procedure 

Purchased Sold Balance 

Date Units 

Unit 

Cost Total Units Unit Cost Total Units 

Unit 

Cost Total 

Beg. Inv. 10 $8.00 $80.00 A new unit cost is 

Mar. 2 10 $8.50 $85 20 8.25 

a 

165.00 calculated after each 

Mar. 10 10 $8.25 $82.50 10 8.25 82.50 purchase. 

May 28 20 8.40 168 30 8.35 

b 

250.50 

July 14 20 8.35 167.00 10 8.35 83.50 

Aug. 12 10 9.00 90 20 8.675 

c 

173.50 The unit cost of sales 

Sept. 7 10 8.675 86.75 10 8.675 86.75 is the most recently 

Oct. 12 20 8.80 176 30 8.758 

d 

262.75 calculated unit cost. 

Nov. 22 20 8.758 175.17* 10 8.758 87.58 

Dec. 21 10 9.10 91 20 $8.929 

e 

$178.58 Balance of $178.58 

would agree with 

balance already 

a $165.00 / 20 = $8.25 existing in the  

b $250.50 / 30 = $8.35 merchandise 

c $173.50 / 20 = $8.675 inventory account. 

d $262.75 / 30 = $8.758 

e $178.58 / 20 = $8.929 

* Rounding difference
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Bankers Insight Group 

Key questions for the lender or analyst regarding the Current Assets are: 

•Is the cash available to the company?

•What is the minimum cash needed?

•What is the age, mix and validity of accounts receivable?

•Are any of the accounts receivable not collectable and what concentrations are there?

•What is the inventory composed of and how does the company maintain a limited supply?

FIXED ASSETS 

Fixed assets include equipment, land, buildings and leasehold improvements. Equipment consists 

of the various pieces of equipment used to produce a product or provide a service. Equipment is 

valued at cost less depreciation. The amount of depreciation is determined by the age, type and 

depreciation method used. Depreciation is a non-cash expense recognized on the income 

statement and deducted from the fixed asset account. Equipment can also be very specialized or 

used by many industries. Land is valued at cost and does not depreciate. Buildings are listed at 

cost less depreciation. Depending on the time the land and building is owned, it may represent a 

source of hidden equity to the lender. 

Leasehold improvements are improvements made to buildings rented or leased by the company. 

They include such items as carpet, lighting and wallpaper. Leasehold improvements represent no 

collateral value to the lender. Equipment, land and building collateral value will vary by the type, 

age and specialty of the asset. For example, a dentist office has less collateral value than an 

office warehouse building, which can be used by many users. 

The capacity of the fixed assets and their efficiency is also an issue. If the fixed assets are not 

used to their maximum capacity, growth may be limited in the future or products possibly not 

shipped on time. For example, a farmer can only harvest so much acreage with one combine.  

Questions to be posed regarding fixed assets include: 

Is there excess capacity that could be rented out?  

For a manufacturer, are assets being used efficiently and is the plant laid out properly?  

Does the company have the ability to repay new term debt? 

Will the company need to replace this equipment frequently and what is the cost impact? 
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Bankers Insight Group 

All these questions are important to the lender because they impact profitability. 

The lender must consider the age and technology of the equipment. If the equipment is old, it 

may need excessive maintenance causing the company to need a new equipment loan soon. 

Some equipment, such as telephone and computer equipment, has a short technological life.  

Summary of Depreciation Methods 

Method Base Calculation 

Straight-line Asset _     Estimated  

cost           salvage value 

________base 

Number of years of useful life 

Units-of-production Asset _     Estimated 

cost           salvage value 

Base x         units produced this period 

Estimated total units of production 

Sum-of-the-years’-digits Asset _     Estimated 

cost           salvage value

Base x    number of years of useful life 

remaining     at beginning of accounting 

period_ 

SOYD 

Double-declining-balance Asset _     Accumulated 

cost          depreciation 

Base x (2 x Straight-line rate) 
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Bankers Insight Group 

Straight-Line Method 

Sum-of-the-Years'-Digits Method 

Double-Declining-Balance Method 
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Bankers Insight Group 

Other Assets 

Other assets are intangibles, prepaid assets, goodwill, investments and deposits. Intangibles and 

goodwill are assets from the sale of a business. An example of an Other Asset that may be 

purchased and is intangible is a company’s name. Prepaid assets are amounts paid in advance for 

a service to be provided later. Annual insurance payments are an example of prepaid assets. For 

agricultural businesses, prepaid assets are listed as a current asset. Investments include such 

things as funds invested in other businesses outside the operating business and long-term 

investments such as real estate partnerships. Deposits are amounts paid in advance. For example, 

rental deposits on real estate are paid in advance and returned when the lease is canceled. 

Current Liabilities Analysis 

Like assets, liabilities are listed in order of their liquidity as well.  They are classified as either 

current or long-term. Current liabilities are those due in less than twelve months. Long-term 

liabilities are due in over one year. Current liabilities are notes payable to banks, notes payable to 

others, accounts payable, accrued expenses and current maturities of long-term debt.  

NOTES PAYABLE 

 Notes Payable, generally to banks, are short-term borrowings usually used to finance current 

assets. The loans may be due to seasonal or one-time orders. Loans over the winter to finance 

snow blowers are an example of a short-term seasonal note. The loans are due in a single 

payment at the end of the season. Another example is a company, which receives a one-time 

order and needs a short-term note to finance the accounts receivable. The loan is due in a single 

payment and repaid when the receivable is collected. Further information on structuring 

commercial and agricultural loans will be discussed in the next two modules. 

The interest rate, terms and collateral are all issues the lender must consider. If the interest rate 

floats, the cost of the loan may increase and the profit from the sale of the service or product will 

decrease. If the note becomes due before the product is sold for cash or before the accounts 

receivable is collected, will a lender be willing to renew the note? 

Notes payable to others are amounts owed to suppliers or others. If notes are owed to suppliers 

for inventory, the lender should understand why the inventory couldn’t be sold quickly under 

normal terms to pay the supplier. If the note is for an equipment purchase, the lender will want to 

know why the debt is not structured as a long-term debt. Any liability in this account is unusual 

and should be thoroughly understood by the lender. 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

Accounts payable are amounts owed to suppliers for product purchased. The amount is interest-

free financing and due usually in 30 days or less. The lender will want to know how many 

suppliers and the amount of debt owed to each. Also, most suppliers set credit limits. The lender 

must know if the company is at its limit or if it has the availability to purchase more products. If 
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the company has only one supplier, there is more risk than if they have many. If the single 

supplier decides not to sell additional product to the company, they may not be able to stay in 

business. 

ACCRUED EXPENSES 

Accrued expenses are amounts recognized as expenses on the income statement but not yet paid. 

They include accrued interest, wages payable, profit sharing, bonuses, vacation and taxes. The 

timing of the payment must be known along with the length of time until the company needs to  

fund the expense. Taxes accrued for longer than the current period are a warning sign of 

problems and the lender will want to determine the company’s ability to stay in business. 

CURRENT PORTION OF LONG-TERM DEBT 

Current maturities of long-term debt are the principal portion of the long- term debt due in the 

coming year.  It may include current principal payments on leases and other fixed charges.   

When calculating the Debt Coverage Ratio, the denominator in the calculation should be the 

current portion of long-term debt for the prior year because that will be the amount paid in the 

current year. r 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-term bank debt is the amount owed over one year. The interest rate, terms, and collateral 

are all issues for the lender to consider. The lender also needs to know if there are any loans 

which have a long-term amortization, but a shorter-term due date. If so, will the loans be 

renewed when they come due? 

Other long-term debt typically is the amount owed to stockholders or officers of the company. In 

privately held corporations, the owners will frequently take large personal salaries to lower 

corporate taxes. The owner then lends the excess salary to the company. When the company 

repays the loan, the amount is not taxed to the owner. In those cases, the debt should be 

subordinated to the bank. This means the officer or stockholder agrees to be paid after the bank 

debt is repaid. 

The lender’s key questions should include: 

• Will the company need any long-term debt in the future?

• If so, what are they planning to purchase?

• The company has been leaving profits in the company; will they continue to do so?
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NET WORTH 

Net Worth is made up of stock issued by the company to its owners, retained earnings and 

treasury stock. Stock may be listed as common or preferred. Most privately held companies only 

have common stock. Retained earnings are profits left in the company. Treasury stock is stock 

repurchased by the company from its stockholders. 

INCOME STATEMENT ANALYSIS 

The income statement shows the amount of sales/revenues generated and cost/expenses incurred.  

The bottom line of an income statement indicates whether the entity earned a profit or incurred a 

loss.  Unlike a balance sheet, which captures the value of assets, liabilities and net worth at a 

specific point in time, the income statement captures activity over a period. The business has 

generated revenues from sales and paid total expenses. The typical income statement is 

structured as follows: 

Sales 

- Cost of Goods Sold

= Gross Profit 

- Operating expenses (selling expenses, general and administrative expenses)

= Operating income 

- Non-operating expenses (interest expense, other nonrecurring expenses)

+ Non-operating income (interest income, other nonrecurring income)

= Net income before tax 

+ Taxes

= Net profit after tax 
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ACCOUNTING METHOD: CASH BASIS VS. ACCRUAL BASIS 

 Financial Statements and Tax Returns can be prepared on Cash or an Accrual Basis. The 

difference in the two accounting methods is vast. Both methods have their advantages and 

disadvantages. Unfortunately, bankers often do not have a say in type of accounting method the 

client will present unless while a problem loan situation in which the banker mandates the type 

of accounting method. 

Accrual Basis 

 Financial statements prepared on an Accrual Basis will recognize all economic events regardless 

of the collection of cash at the point of sale or the payment of costs and expenses at the time the 

costs and expenses are incurred. Simply stated, the Accrual Method records all economic 

transactions that a normal entity will incur on a day-to-day basis. The advantage of the Accrual 

Method is that the user will see all the accounting transactions in a given period thus providing 

the opportunity to perform a thorough analysis on the entity. The disadvantage is that the Accrual 

Method does not indicate the amount of cash generate or used by the entity.  

Cash Basis 

Financial statements prepared on the Cash Basis will recognize economic events only when cash 

is collected from sales and paid out for costs and expenses. It is meant to present a more 

conservative look at the performance on an entity by ignoring transactions that do not generate 

cash or use cash. Companies that use this method do not want to “Count Their Chickens Before 

They Hatch”, so to speak.  

Since the Cash Basis only reflects cash transactions, there is no need to perform a Cash Flow 

Analysis because the financial statements are on a Cash Basis already. The disadvantage is that 

the user of the financial statements will not see all of the economic events an entity incurred and 

as such, a thorough analysis of the entity cannot be performed.  

Cash Basis of accounting is often used by law, accounting, engineering, architectural firms and 

many other similar service related businesses because collections of amounts due from clients 

may take longer than other entities that provide a vital product that is critical to the production of 

goods and services. 

Companies utilizing the Cash Basis will not show accrual accounts on their balance sheets such 

as Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses and as such, the loan officer 

should request for an ageing of those accounts so that a thorough analysis can be performed. 
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Sales 

Analysis of the income statement starts with sales, which is the revenue a business receives for 

selling its products or services. Revenues from sales are usually recognized when the product is 

shipped, or the service is provided. However, the accounting method may vary from industry to 

industry. For example, a construction company may recognize revenue when the project is 

complete or use the percentage of completion method. If using the completion method and the 

project is 25% completed during the first quarter, then revenues for the first quarter of the project 

are recognized.  If using the completion accounting method, no revenues would be recognized 

until the project is finished 

. 

An important factor when analyzing revenues is the impact of accrual basis of accounting and 

cash basis of accounting on revenues. Accrual accounting matches revenues with costs and 

expenses regardless if cash is collected (from revenue) or spent on costs and expenses.  Cash 

accounting recognizes revenue, costs and expenses when cash is received or paid. Accrual 

accounting is a better measure of how the borrower has managed assets and how profitable the 

operating entity is. 

A good indicator of a company’s performance is the change in sales level over several 

statements. By comparing revenues over several years, the lender can begin to determine 

management’s decisions over time. It is worthwhile for the lender to note the change in dollars 

and percentage over time. 

Cost of Goods Sold 

Cost of goods sold are the “direct” costs incurred primarily by manufacturers for producing their 

product. For wholesalers and retailers, the cost of goods sold is the price paid to purchase 

finished goods. For service businesses, there is no cost of goods sold as no product is purchased 

or manufactured for resale.  For farms, there are no cost of goods sold on the Schedule F since all 

cost of production expenses are included as expenses on the Schedule F. 
. 

Cost of goods sold for a manufacturer is calculated as follows: 

Beginning inventory 

+ Raw Material

+ Labor Costs

+ Manufacturing Overhead

= Cost of goods available for sale 
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- Work in Process

- Ending Inventory

` 

= Cost of Goods Sold 

The cost of goods sold for wholesalers and retailers is calculated as follows: 

Beginning inventory 

+ Purchases of Finished Products

- Less Ending Inventory

=Cost of Goods Sold 

Operating Expenses Analysis 

Operating expenses are costs not directly related to the production or making a product or 

purchasing finished goods. Operating expenses are considered controllable expenses in contrast 

to cost of goods sold. For example, the business owner may have only two or three supplier 

choices at similar costs but may control spending expenses by choosing to rent or buy a building, 

pay employees by commission or flat wages and so forth. For farm operations, operating 

expenses are related to the production of crop and livestock products. 

Operating expenses are usually variable or semi-fixed but may become fixed. For example, if an 

owner decides to purchase a building, then the mortgage payment becomes a fixed payment. By 

separating the operating expenses this way, the lender can better determine the total costs a 

company must cover whether it sells any product or not.  Operating expenses for business 

operations include the following: 

•Owner’s salary

•Sales salaries

•General salary expenses

•Rent

•Marketing expenses

•Insurance

•Utilities

•Maintenance

•Profit sharing
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Operating expenses for farm operations include all expenses involved in producing the crop or 

livestock product, such as: 

•Feed

•Seed

•Fertilizer

•Owner withdrawals

•Repairs

•Depreciation

Certain expenses may get out of hand if not monitored and the lender must be prepared to ask 

why expenses are changing and what impact the changes have on the company. Again, operating 

expenses are best expressed in total dollars and as a percentage of sales. 
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► ASSETS ► CASH

Assets are items of value which Cash is money on hand, demand

are owned and are measurable in deposits, undeposited checks,

► ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Accounts 

payable are amounts owed to 

creditors for items or services 

purchased from them. terms of money. drafts and money orders.

► ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE ► BALANCE SHEET ► CASH BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Accounts receivable are A balance sheet is a formal Cash basis of accounting

payments due from customers statement of the assets, liabilities recognizes revenues when cash

for goods sold. and stockholders' equity of an is received and expenses when

entity as of a specific date. cash is paid.

► ACCRUAL BASIS OF

ACCOUNTING ► CAPITAL ► CASH FLOW

Accrual basis of accounting Capital is the funds belonging Cash flow is net income plus

matches revenues and expenses to the owners of a business, noncash expenses, discretionary

incurred whether cash has been invested with the expressed borrower expenses and/or any

paid or received, i.e., revenues intention of remaining contributions. It is cash available

are recognized when sales are permanently in the business. for debt repayment.

made or services performed Another source of capital

even though cash has not yet is earnings retained by the ► CHATTEL PROPERT Y

been received. Expenses are company. Chattel property is personal

recognized as incurred whether or property which is movable, such

not cash has been paid out. ► CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES as furniture or an automobile.

Capital gains and losses are

► ACCRUED EXPENSES PAYABLE those gains and losses that are ► COMMON STOCK

Accrued expenses payable are not related to the normal activity Common stock is stock

debts incurred but not yet paid, of the business and are usually representing residual equity

such as federal income tax or the nonrecurring. For example, if a in a corporation. Preferred

current portion of long-term debt. company sells some stock and stockholders rank ahead of

loses money in the transaction, common stockholders for

► ACCUMULATED RETAINED this would be considered a dividend payment and claims

EARNINGS capital loss. against assets in event of

Accumulated retained earnings liquidation. If only one class of

are the accumulated income of ► CAPITALIZATION EXPENSE stock is issued, it is known as

the corporation after taxes. Capitalization expense is the common stock.

accounting method of recognizing

► ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES expenses as intangible assets ► CORPORATION

Administrative expenses are to be annually expensed, such A corporation is a legal entity,

those overhead expenses incurred as organization expenses and chartered by a state government,

in the overall management of research and development. and is separate and distinct from

a business. Examples include the persons wl10 own it. It can

executive salaries, rent on ► CAPITAL STOCK sue, be sued, hold/convey and

administrative buildings and Capital stock is an account receive property and enter into

insurance. showing the investment in a contracts under its own name.

business by its stockholders.

► AMORTIZATION ► COST OF GOODS SOLD

Amortization is the writing-off ► CAPITAL SURPLUS Cost of goods sold is the seller's

of initial costs incurred prior to Capital surplus is the amount expense for goods sold to

the beginning of formal business paid in by shareholders over the customers; it is computed as

operations. legal par value of each share. beginning inventory + net cost of

purchases = ending inventory.
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► CURRENT ASSETS

Current assets are cash and

other assets that will be

consumed or converted to cash

during a relatively short period of

time, generally a year or less.

► CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current liabilities are debts,

usually due within one year, that

will be paid from current assets.

► CURRENT PORTION OF

LONG-TERM DEBT

Current portion of long-term

debt is the share of long-term

debt due within twelve months.

An example of this would be

the portion of a mortgage due

within a year.

► DEFERRED CHARGE

Deferred charge is a debt

incurred which will be

paid in the future.

► DEFERRED EXPENSES

Deferred expenses are expenses

to be paid at some future date.

► DEPLETION

Depletion is an expense

representing the loss in value of

a natural resource asset. The loss

in value is due to the removal

of part of that asset. This loss

in value is thus recognized as

a cost and reduces income and

consequently taxes, even though

no cash has been paid.

► DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is an expense

representing the loss in value

of chattel or real property. It

is charged against current

income. This loss in value

is thus recognized as a cost

and reduces income and

consequently taxes, even though

no cash has been paid.

► DIVIDEND AND INTEREST

INCOME

Dividend and interest income is

income earned from investments.

► EXPENSES

Expenses are costs incurred

during a period of time from

delivering or producing goods,

rendering services, or carrying

out other activities that

constitute an entity's ongoing

operations.

► FEDERAL INCOME TAX PAYABLE

Federal income tax payable is

the debt due to the Internal

Revenue Service.

► FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets are long-term

assets that are not intended for

sale. Some may be depreciated,

such as buildings and furniture,

while others are depleted, such

as oil wells and timber stands.

► GENERAL PARTNERSHIP

A general partnership is one

in which the partners have

unlimited liability for any and all

partnership debts. The general

partner pays tax at individual

rates on his share of the net

income.

► GOODWILL

Goodwill is an intangible

asset in a company balance

sheet; it represents a premium

paid at time of purchase for

the company's management

skill, know-how and favorable

reputation with customers.

► GROSS INCOME

Gross income is income before

taxes that is derived from all

sources. Gross income includes

wages, interest, dividends, tips,

bonuses, gambling winnings,

gains from property sales and

prizes {including noncash prizes).

► INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

Income from operations is the

income a business receives as

a result of ongoing business

operations.

► INCOME STATEMENT

An income statement is a formal

summary of an organization's

revenues and expenses for a

specified period of time.

► INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are noncurrent,

nonphysical assets of a

business, such as goodwill,

patents and trademarks.

► INTANGIBLE DRILLING COSTS

Intangible drilling costs are

costs incurred for the labor

and equipment used in drilling.

These generally are discretionary

expenses.

56



► INVENTORIES

Inventories are those items of

tangible property that are (1)

held for sale in the ordinary

course of business, (2) in

process of production for such

sale or (3) to be used for

producing goods or services

that will be available for sale.

► LAND

Land is ground upon which the

buildings of an enterprise are

located,

► LIABILITIES

Liabilities are debts or

obligations that usually have a

known or determinable amount,

maturity date and party to whom

payment is to be made.

► LIMITED LIABILITY

COMPANY (LLC)

A limited liability company offers

a single !evel of taxation to its

owners. The LLC reports each

member's share of income or

loss on a partnership K-1. Unlike

a partnership, an LLC offers

owners the ability to participate

in the management of the

company without causing them

to be personally liable for the

debts of the company. In some

cases, an LLC may elect to be

treated as a corporation and

would file a Form 1120,

► LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

A limited partnership is one in

which the partner's liability is

limited to his or her investment

The limited partner pays tax

on his or her share of the net

income at individual rates.

Each limited partner requires a

general partner with unlimited

liability.

► LIQUID ASSETS

Liquid assets are cash or those

assets that are easily converted

into cash, such as marketable

securities.

► LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liabilities are debts

due after one year from the date

of the balance sheet Examples

of long-term liabilities include

bonds, notes and mortgages.

► MACHINERY

Machinery is heavy equipment

used in manufacturing a product

or performing a service for a

customer.

► MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Marketable securities are readily

salable securities acquired with

temporarily unneeded cash.

► MODIFIED ACCELERATED COST

RECOVERY SYSTEM (MACRS)

MACRS is a method of

calculating depreciation with

a larger portion of the asset

expensed in the early years of its

estimated useful life.

► NET INCOME AFTER TAXES

Net income after taxes is the

income remaining after provision

for or payment of taxes.

► NET INCOME BEFORE TAXES

Net income before taxes is the

income before provision for taxes.

► NET PROFIT

Net profit is the profit remaining 

after all expenses and charges 

have been deducted. 

► NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable are written

promises to pay sums of money

at a future date, usually with

interest at a specified rate,

► OTHER ASSETS

Other assets are assets acquired

for iong-term rights and

privileges which have no physical

existence. Examples of other

assets include prepayments and

deferred charges, intangibles,

goodwill and trademarks.

► PREFERRED STOCK

Preferred stock is capital stock

that has certain preference

rights over common stock.

Preferred stock may be preferred

as to dividends, preferred as to

assets or preferred as to both

dividends and assets.

► PREPAYMENTS

Prepayments are expenses which

are paid before they are used

or incurred. Taxes and rent are

examples of prepaid expenses.

► PROVISION FOR TAXES

Provision for taxes is the

expense provision for state and

federal taxes.

► REAL PROPERTY

Real property is land and any

property attached to land which

cannot be moved, such as a

building.

► RESEARCH AND

DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Research and development costs

are the costs of research and

development Most often, they

are expensed at the time they

are incurred.
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► RETAINED EARNINGS

Retained earnings represent any

earned income of a corporation

that is not dispersed in the form

of salaries and/or dividends at

year's end,

► S CORPORATIONS

S corporations are small, start

up corporations that are taxed as

partnerships even though they

are corporations. They must be

domestic, have only one class

of stock and have no more than

100 shareholders.

► SALES

Sales are the transfer of

ownership of goods from one

party to another. Each time a

sale is made, a revenue account

called "Sales" is increased by

the amount of the selling price of

the goods sold.

► SELLING EXPENSES

Selling expenses are those

expenses that are incurred in

the selling and marketing effort

Examples include salaries and

commissions of salespersons,

advertising, rent on sales

buildings, sales suppl'ies used

and utilities on sales buildings.

► SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP

A sole proprietorship is an

unincorporated business

owned by an individual and

often managed by that same

individual.

► STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Stockholders' equity is the

corporation's net worth after

subtracting liabilities from

assets. It is the owners' interest

in a corporation, consisting of

capital and preferred stock and

retained earnings.

► STRAIGHT-LINE METHOD OF

DEPRECIATION

The straight-line method of

depreciation distributes the same

dollar amount of depreciation

to expense each period. For

example, a $10,000 car with a

useful life of ten years would be

depreciated by $1,000 each year.

► TRADEMARK

A trademark is a symbol, design,

brand name or any other indication

of easy and ready recognition

attributed to a product
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